
BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
AGENDA PACKET 

REGULAR TRUSTEES’ MEETING  
MONDAY NOVEMBER 9, 2015 

1:00 P.M. 

 

 

Agenda:  Pages 2-3 
 
New Business:    Pages 4-5    
 

 Veterans Day Proclamation 
 
Administrator:    Pages 6- 
 

 Communication Policy    Pages 6-9 

 2016 Holiday Schedule    Page 10    

 2016 Meeting Schedule    Pages 11-12 

 Contract Renewal for Vision Care    Pages 13-14 

 Beavercreek Historical Society Agreement    Pages 15-18 

 Greene County Sheriff’s Office Report    Pages 19-25 
 
Finance:    Pages 26-17 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Human Resources:    Pages 28-29     

 Biweekly Report 
 
Zoning:    Pages 30-33 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Information Technology:    Pages 34-35  

 Biweekly Report 
 
Road:    Pages 36-41 
 

 Purchase Request – Energy Audit    Pages 36-40 

 Biweekly Report    Page 41 
 
Fire:    Pages 42-67 
 

 Purchase Request for Fire Gear Repair    Pages 42-43 

 Purchase Request for Replacement Rechargeable Flashlights    Page 44 

 Request for Signed Agreement with Scott Safety Technologies    Pages 44-46 

 Request to Adopt New Policy:  Emergency Scene & Training Rehabilitation Page 46 

 Request Permission to Surplus Obsolete Medic and Rescue   Page 46 

 Biweekly Report    Pages 47-49 
 
 

1 of 67

1 of 67



 

1 | P a g e  
 

Agenda 
Regular Trustees’ Meeting 

Monday, November 9, 2015, at 1:00 p.m. 
Community Room Lower Level of Fire Station #61,  2195 Dayton-Xenia Road, Beavercreek, OH 45434 

 
Regular Trustees Meeting:   
 
Pledge of Allegiance - Moment of Silence 

 Approve Agenda for the November 9, 2015, Meeting 

 Approve the November 10, 2015, Payroll in the amount of $ 

 Approval of Bills in the amount of $ 

 Approval of Minutes: 
 Regular Meeting Minutes of October 26, 2015 

 
Citizens Desiring to Speak (Each Speaker is Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
Old Business:    

 Flexible Spending Accounts  
 
New Business:    

 Veterans Day Proclamation 
 
Administrator: 

 Communication Policy 

 Policy Manual 

 2016 Holiday Schedule     

 2016 Meeting Schedule  

 Contract Renewal for Vision Care 

 Beavercreek Historical Society Agreement 

 Greene County Sheriff’s Office Report 
 

Finance: 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Human Resources:     

 Biweekly Report 
 
Zoning:  

 Biweekly Report 
 

Information Technology:  

 Biweekly Report 
 
Road: 

 Purchase Request – Energy Audit 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Fire: 

 Purchase Request for Fire Gear Repair 

 Purchase Request for Replacement Rechargeable Flashlights 

 Request for Signed Agreement with Scott Safety Technologies 

 Request to Adopt New Policy:  Emergency Scene and Training Rehabilitation 

 Request Permission to Surplus Obsolete Medic and Rescue 

 Biweekly Report 
 
Legal Advisor:   

 Fringe Benefits Update 
 
Trustees:             
      (continued on reverse) 

2 of 67

2 of 67



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Fiscal Officer: 
 
Executive Session: 

 Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(2) To consider the purchase of property for public purposes. 

 Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(1) To consider the discipline of a public employee or the investigation 
of charges or complaints against a public employee.   

 
 
Adjourn 

3 of 67

3 of 67



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

IN HONOR OF  

VETERANS EMPLOYED BY BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP 

 

NOVEMBER 9, 2015 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

 

WHEREAS, on November 11, 2015 Beavercreek Township will observe Veterans Day, 

pausing to honor every veteran who has ever worn one of our Nation’s service uniforms; and 

 

WHEREAS, as we pay tribute to our Veterans, we are mindful that no ceremony can 

repay the debt we owe each and every day for their service to our Country; and 

 

WHEREAS, each time our freedoms have come under assault, our Veterans have 

responded with resolve, courage and a willingness to sacrifice; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the most demanding of circumstances, and in the most dangerous 

corners of the earth, America’s Veterans have served our Country with distinction and valor; and 

all Veterans deserve our gratitude and praise for their selfless acts and for the duty served to our 

great Country; and  

 

WHEREAS, on this day, Beavercreek Township wishes to honor employees of the 

Township who are Veterans and/or are currently  active in a Military Reserve unit, namely: 

 

 Micah Blanton – Army 

 Steve Dubois – Air Force 

 Shawn Fowler – Coast Guard 

 Eric McComas – Army National Guard – active reservist 

 Rob Negri – Navy 

 Ben Northup – Army    

 John Ostrowske – Air Force National Guard – active reservist 

 Doug Ransdell – Army 

 Jeff Terry – Air Force 

 Bob Treiber – Army    

 

4 of 67

4 of 67



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Beavercreek 

Township, Greene County, Ohio extends its heartfelt gratitude and best wishes for success in 

their  future endeavors to these employees who have served so well;  and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that we urge all citizens to pay due respect and 

gratitude to the Veterans for their sacrifice and service to our Country. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have here unto set our hand and caused the SEAL of 

Beavercreek Township to be affixed this 9
th

 day of November, year 2015. 

 

 

BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

____________________________ ATTESTED BY: 

Tom Kretz, Chair 

 

 

 

____________________________ ___________________________ 

Carol Graff, Vice Chair Christy L. Ahrens 

  Fiscal Officer 

   

 

____________________________ 

Daniel K. Paxson, Trustee 

 

5 of 67

5 of 67



 

Beavercreek Township 
1 of 4 

Communications Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy Title: Communications Plan  Approved: XXXX  
           

Section: X     Revised: XXXX   
  

Number: XXX     Reviewed: XXXX 

 

 

PURPOSE:   Beavercreek Township is committed to creating an environment which 

encourages two-way communication between the organization, its 

employees, and the community.  Through effective communications, 

create a positive working environment that optimizes employee 

performance. All Township personnel are involved in communication 

efforts on a daily basis, whether it is dealing one-on-one with stakeholders 

and/or the general public; working with one another; or responding to the 

media. 

 

APPLICATION:  This policy contains specific guidelines applicable to all Beavercreek 

Township employees. The details of procedures for members of the labor 

groups listed below may be contained in their respective contracts or 

agreements.  

 

REFERENCE(S): Beavercreek Township Policy Manual; IAFF Local XXXX Collective 

Bargaining Agreement; Beavercreek Township Road Department 

Agreement.  

 

RELATED  

POLICY(S):   N/A 

 

DEFINITIONS: Department Head- an individual, as defined by their job description, who 

oversees the daily operations of one of the Township’s departments  

 

Employee - all individuals except independent contractors and elected 

officials, whose compensation is paid by the Township and who have been 

hired via Township Resolution. 

 

External Communications- is the transmission of information between 

the Township and external stakeholders.   

 

Internal Communications - any short or long-term communication 

between the employer and the employee such as publications, special 

events, memorandums, programs and forums.  These communications 

may be targeted to specific employee groups, individual departments and 

offices. 

BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP, GREENE COUNTY, OHIO 

POLICY MANUAL   

6 of 67

6 of 67



 

Beavercreek Township 
2 of 4 

Communications Plan 

 

 

 

Township Administrator – an Employee of the Board of Trustees who 

acts as the designee of the Board and manages all day to day operations of 

the Township, and whose duties are defined within the Ohio Revised 

Code. 

 

Supervisor - an individual who has been authorized by the Township 

Administrator or Board of Trustees to oversee and direct the work of other 

Employees on a daily basis. 

 

POLICY:  
 
1. Internal Communication 

 

1.1. Open, two way communications between the Elected Officials, appointed Boards, 

Township Administrator, Department Heads and employees is vital to the effective 

operations of the Township.  

 

1.2. Effective internal communication is a shared management responsibility, led by the 

Township Administrator with support from Department Heads. Department Heads must 

communicate with employees openly, often and, wherever possible, before information 

is made public. To inform and engage employees, a variety of formats must be used, as 

appropriate and as resources permit, to reach the diverse audience across the Township. 

This may include, but is not limited to, memoranda, notices, SharePoint bulletins, oral 

presentations, one on one conversation and staff meetings. To ensure consistency and 

effective use of Township communication channels and formats, Department Heads may 

consult with the Township Administrator for support and advice before undertaking 

communications initiatives. 

 

1.3. There may be circumstances when information should not be released internally because 

such release may not be in the best interest of the Township or may be subject to an 

exception from disclosure under the Public Records’ Law or federal privacy laws. Each 

Department shall be responsible for ensuring confidential information is disseminated in 

compliance with applicable state and federal public records and privacy laws. 

 

2. Current Methods 

 

2.1. The Township utilizes a number of internal communications methods to relay 

information to its employees. The primary purpose of our internal communications 

system is to provide employees accurate and timely information. 

 

2.2. Methods of communication include: 

 

2.2.1. One-on-one communication occurs on a daily basis with all employees of the 

Township and is an excellent way of communicating.  

7 of 67

7 of 67



 

Beavercreek Township 
3 of 4 

Communications Plan 

 

 

2.2.2. As in most organizations, e-mail is an effective means of communication that the 

Township uses. Department-wide e-mails provide the sender the capability of 

alerting others to critical information in a timely and efficient manner. 

2.2.3. SharePoint provides current information and links to publications and other vital 

Township information. SharePoint contains links to a variety of data utilized by 

employees on a daily basis.  All employees are required to review SharePoint daily.     

2.2.4. Department Annual Reports are created and posted on the Township’s website.  It 

is an important reference tool that contains yearend statistics and department 

highlights. 

2.2.5. Department memorandums keep all employees informed of changing policies and 

procedures. Department memorandums shall be located on the department’s 

SharePoint home page. 

2.2.6. The Township has employed several types of social media to help keep our 

community informed. They are: Facebook, Twitter, and You Tube.  All employees 

are encouraged to follow the Township on these social media sites.   

2.2.7. Press Releases keep the public and employees aware of Township related and 

newsworthy critical events. All press releases shall be posted on SharePoint and 

disseminated to media outlets. 

 

3. Future Methods 

 

3.1. It is important in the future that the Township communicate through means that can 

reach as many employees as possible, in the most efficient and cost effective manner.  

 

3.2. Future methods of communication include: 

 

3.2.1. Staff Meetings are an important part of ongoing dialogue between Department 

Heads and Supervisors in addition to offering a helpful way to monitor progress, 

raise concerns and address any issues before they become problems. Staff Meetings 

can take place daily, weekly or bi-weekly.     

3.2.2. Each Department Head should also have a monthly meeting with their employees. 

During these meetings, Department Heads will discuss any relevant Township 

issues and allow for questions and answers. 

3.2.3. The Township Administrator will meet on a quarterly basis with all employees. 

The Township Administrator will identify which internal communications are of a 

sensitive nature (labor relations information, benefits or compensation matters, 

health or safety related issues) and allow open dialogue at these meetings.   

 

4. External Communications  

 

4.1. As the Township continues to cultivate relationships within the community, the 

Township will annually review channels of communication and seek new and 

progressive platforms to ensure messages to the external stakeholders are received. This 

process is paramount as the community will continue to keep pace with advancements in 

technology. Whether the Township is attempting to provide information township-wide 

or to a specific group, the Township will tailor the means of communication to a 

particular audience.  

8 of 67

8 of 67



 

Beavercreek Township 
4 of 4 

Communications Plan 

 

 

 

4.2. External stakeholders may include: 

4.2.1. Residents 

4.2.2. Area business owners and employees 

4.2.3. Social service organizations 

4.2.4. Neighborhood groups and associations 

4.2.5. Media outlets 

4.2.6. Nonprofit organizations 

4.2.7. Educational institutions 

 

4.3. Advancements in technology are an essential step in effective communication. The 

Township has implemented a comprehensive assortment of communication channels to 

provide information to external stakeholders. These may include: 

4.3.1. Township website 

4.3.2. City of Beavercreek In Touch Magazine 

4.3.3. Twitter 

4.3.4. YouTube  

4.3.5. Community Forums 

4.3.6. Citizen Surveys 

4.3.7. Press releases 

4.3.8. Facebook 

4.3.9. Text message alerts through Nixle 

 

4.4. All media contacts to a department should be reported to the Township Administrator.  

The Township Administrator will approve all content before being released to the 

external stakeholders. 

 

5. Emergency Communications 

 

5.1. In the event of an incident, staff designated by Township Administrator, may serve as 

spokespersons. Following the communications, the employee should then notify their 

immediate supervisor or Department Head.   

 

 

FORMS: N/A 

9 of 67

9 of 67



D
ra

ft

10 of 67

10 of 67



D
ra

ft

11 of 67

11 of 67



“I make a motion to approve the Beavercreek Township Regular Meeting 
Schedule for calendar year 2016 as presented” 

 

12 of 67

12 of 67



13 of 67

13 of 67



Motion 

 

“I make a motion to approve the renewal contract with VSP for vision care and 

authorize the Township Administrator to sign for the Board.” 

14 of 67

14 of 67



15 of 67

15 of 67



16 of 67

16 of 67



17 of 67

17 of 67



18 of 67

18 of 67



19 of 67

19 of 67



20 of 67

20 of 67



21 of 67

21 of 67



22 of 67

22 of 67



23 of 67

23 of 67



24 of 67

24 of 67



25 of 67

25 of 67



26 of 67

26 of 67



27 of 67

27 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 426-1213        Fax: (937) 306-5150 

 

 1 

BI-WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

November 9, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

JOB TASKS: 
 

1. 6 Workers’ Compensation claims for 2015 

3 claims filed in 2014 

 

2. Prepare bi-weekly report  

 

3. Review bills 

 

4. Work on BWC claim 

 

5. Work on biometric screenings 

 

6. Work on FMLA issue 

 

7. Prepare grievance response 

 

8. Work on fire department specific wellness program through new provider 

 

9. Draft management proposals for Xenia Twp; update index 

 

10. Work on hiring 

 

11. Work on compensation plan 

 

12.  Work on handbook 

 

13.  Work with intern 

 

14.  Work on FLSA issue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28 of 67

28 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 426-1213        Fax: (937) 306-5150 

 

 2 

 

 

 

 

MEETINGS AND OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

 

Meet with the TA on multiple issues 

Telephone conference on biometric screenings 

Meet with Chief VandenBos on multiple issues 

Attend collective bargaining at Xenia Township 

Meeting with Union representatives and Mangement 

 

 

 

29 of 67

29 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

1 

Column1 Column2 Column3 Column4 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Single family dwellings 62 37 47 26 61 82

Driveways 32 22 32 27 57 80

Additions 4 9 1 3 10 5

Fences 16 19 14 20 22 12

Pools (including fence) 2 4 8 11 5 7

Signs 6 7 7 4 9 7

Rights of Way 3 0 7 1 2 3

Accessory Decks & Covered Patio 14 16 26 15 8 12

Accessory Structures 13 13 14 14 13 11

Commercial Structures 1 0 7 2 0 0

Commercial Addition 2 0 2 1 1 2

Commercial Accessory Structures  1 0 1 2 5 2

Temporary Tents  Permits 13 13 13 13 14 12

Exemption Certificate 0 1 2 3 2 6

Use Compliance Certificates 1 2 1 1 1 3

Cell Tower Co-location 0 0 0 0 2 0

Temporary Use Permits (Real Estate Sales)    0 0 0 0 2 0

Political Signs 1 5 2 19 4 7

Parks Permits 0 0 0 0 0 17

Total 171 148 184 162 218 268

Revenue $14,274.80 $24,094.65 $15,843.80 $11,735.00 $15,910.00 $24,270.00

 

BI-WEEKLY REPORT 

FOR THE TRUSTEES MEETING OF MONDAY, NOVEMBER 09, 2015 

ACTIVITY FROM THU. OCTOBER 22 THROUGH WED. NOVEMBER 04, 2015 

PERMITS:  Five permits for single-family dwellings were issued in this period. Other Zoning 

Actions included one fence permit, two residential accessory structure permits and one 

agricultural exemption certificate. To date, single-family dwelling permits are up 74%, and 

total permits (now including Park Permits) are up 46% compared to 2014. 

The following chart compares numbers of Zoning Permits issued for the last five years. 

Numbers through 2014 are totals for the year. 2015 numbers are, of course year-to-date, 

through November 4. The revenue line is the amount generated by Zoning Department fees. 

 

PENDING: Two sets of subdivision construction plans (Bexley 3B, Spring Meadows Sec. 5) 

are under review. New Stonehill Village Master Plan proposal is under review. 

30 of 67

30 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

2 

 -

 5,000.00

 10,000.00

 15,000.00

 20,000.00

 25,000.00

 30,000.00

 35,000.00

 40,000.00

 45,000.00

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Fund Tracking

General

Road

Fire

Police

 

REVENUE PROJECTIONS 

The following chart shows estimated additional Township revenue generated by new home 

construction, by Fund. For 2010 through 2014 the amounts are based on final year-end 

Zoning Permit totals. The numbers for this year are, of course, year-to-date based on permits 

issued through 11-04-15, using 2014 Tax Levy rates and an estimated average NEW HOME 

property value of $300,000. Note: Receipt of revenues will be two years after they are 

generated, e.g. revenue generated in 2015 will be disbursed to the Township in 2017. 

 

 

The following graph is simply an illustration of the revenue data in the chart above. 

Fund 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

General 3,202.50                            1,995.00           2,467.50               1,365.00                          3,150.00      4,305.00      

Road 20,391.48                          12,702.89         15,711.47             8,691.45                          20,057.20    27,411.50    

Fire 30,701.78                          19,125.70         23,655.47             13,086.01                        30,198.48    41,271.25    

Police 5,676.65                            3,536.27           4,373.81               2,419.56                          5,583.59      7,630.91      

Total 59,972.42                          37,359.87         46,208.26             25,562.01                        58,989.26    80,618.66    

31 of 67

31 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

3 

MEETINGS/OTHER ACTIVITIES: 

1. Continued work on Highway Business District Overlay; several discussions with 

Township Administrator, RPCC Executive Director; prep for Zoning Commission work 

session on 11-05-15. 

2. Responded to follow-up inquiries re: Ohio University/Russ Research Center strategic 

planning effort. Had extensive conversations with OU planning consultants; conveyed 

additional documents to OU consulting team; discussed availability of adjacent 

property with OU consultant; sent letter and other docs to OU’s CFO.  

3. Consulted with engineer for Stonehill Village to discuss revision to Master 

Development Plan. 

4. Continued formal training of Zoning Assistant for assumption of new duties (Novak 

recommendation). 

5. Attended GCRPCC Zoning Inspectors’ meeting 10-22-15. 

6. Attended MVRPC Long Range Transportation Plan Public Input meeting at GC 

Library – Xenia 10-22-15. 

7. Attended OTA Zoning workshop 10-23-15. 

8. Met with developer & engineer re: Stonehill Village Master Plan revision 10-26-15.  

9. Attended Trustees’ Regular Meeting 10-26-15. 

10. Met wit contractor re: possible subdivision and re-zoning of client property 10-27-15. 

11. Convened and led discussion at second meeting of stakeholders re: initiation of Safe 

Routes to School (SRTS) planning effort 10-28-15. 

12. Attended meeting of GC Water/Wastewater Advisory Committee 10-28-15. 

13. With Road Supt., met with developer on site at Wood Ridge to express concerns over 

infrastructure progress. 

14. Conference call with OU planning consultant and GC Career Center Supt. Re: co-

location options, process, and plan 11-02-15. 

15. Corresponded with resident re: options for accessory structure 11-04-15 

16. Consulted with prospective buyer’s representative re: development options on 

available property 11-04-15. 

17. Attended TA staff meeting 11-04-15. 

18. Met with RPCC staff re: subdivision issues 11-04-15. 

Following are some highlights of additional Zoning tasks performed by Laurie Brown, 
Zoning Assistant (tasks outside her job description) 

 Issued 9 Zoning Permits. 

 Attended GCRPCC Zoning Inspectors’ meeting 10-22-15.   

 Attended OTA Zoning workshop 10-23-15. 

 Responded to two code complaints. 

 Responded to two zoning inquiries.  

 Assisted in preparation of bi-weekly Departmental Activity Report. 

32 of 67

32 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
ZONING DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph.: (937) 306-0065        Fax: (937) 427-6574 
 

4 

PUD # Homes Approved  Completed % Completed Shovel Ready Sites

Spring Meadows

Spring Ridge

The Conservancy

Rolling Meadows 24 23 96% 1

Dorset Downs 37 32 86% 5

Nathaniel's Grove

Wolf Ridge 14 13 93% 1

Stonehill Village

The Narrows

River West 

River Reserve

Stone Farm Est. 26 25 96% 1

Country Club of the North

Hunters' Pointe

Hickory Hollow Est.

Wood Ridge Est. 44 1 2% 43

Arlington

The Colony

Totals 145 94 75% 51

 

BUILD-OUT DATA 

The following chart shows build-out percentages and remaining shovel-ready home sites, by 

subdivision. It is a work-in-progress – several subdivisions need to be added and, obviously, 

the data needs to be gathered and the chart fields populated with that data. We should have 

the chart completed for the next meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

33 of 67

33 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 306.5049        Fax: (937) 426-8780 

 

 1 

Bi-Weekly Report 

November 9, 2015 

(Report period 27 Oct – 9 Nov 15) 

 

Trustees, 

 

The following is a brief synopsis of the past two weeks in the IT department. Everything 

has pretty much taken a backseat to getting the virtual environment healthy.  I am 

working directly with technicians from Citrix and EMC to resolve latency issues.  I will 

be present to answer any questions or concerns you may have.   

 

IT Projects/Management: 

 Upgrade Citrix environment (in-work) 

o Working with Citrix and EMC on latency issues  

 Research and deploy video conferencing between all Fire Stations (on hold for 

Citrix Migration) 

 Equipment Inventory, Surplus (Gov Deals)  and Repurpose IT equipment (hold) 

 Hot/Warm site planning, station 64(hold) 

o Move equipment (old SAN and Citrix Host Servers) 

Network Administration: 

 Citrix 

o Updated hosts servers and VMs 

o Working latency issues with Citrix and  

 Patched /Rebooted servers 

 Social Media—Website,  Facebook, Twitter, YouTube 

o Website 

 Installed New Version Drupal to TWP and Fire websites. 

 Still working on map details for sites 

o YouTube—Posted  26  Oct  Trustees  Meeting 

o Facebook/Twitter—Links posted 

 Unlocked/Reset created new network accounts 

 Verified Backups are current and running. 

 Reviewed Span/Web filters 

o Updated Barracuda web filter 

o Deleted/Whitelisted domains as appropriate  

Meetings: 

 Department heads meeting 

34 of 67

34 of 67



BEAVERCREEK TOWNSHIP  
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
851 Orchard Lane, Beavercreek, Ohio 45434    

Ph: (937) 306.5049        Fax: (937) 426-8780 

 

 2 

Training: 

 None this period 

Miscellaneous / Outages: 

 Exchange server down  

o On 28 October the exchange servers database became corrupt while trying to 

migrate to another host server. 

 After a few hours of troubleshooting I decided to contact Microsoft tech 

support to see if they could restore database.  After several hours we 

were successful and email was restored with no data loss. 

 Web development VM crashed as well 

o Production sites not affected and new development VM was configured 

 Setup Station 61 community room for the Greene Co. Republicans group 

o Setup room and equipment and provided instructions on  how to use equipment 

 Working on 2016 Budget 

Awareness Items: 

 Finance Departments Fax line. 

o Fax line is also tied to building alarm system. 

o Plan is to have Windstream or AT&T move T1 and TCG to move phone switch 

from 1981 to Communications room in Fire Admin. 

 Alarm system in the old Admin building and road department will have 

to be brought down when T-1 line is moved from 1981 D/X to 851 

Orchard.  Hopefully no more than a couple of days.  Will keep TA 

posted. 

Purchases: 

 Toner  

 Microsoft Tech Support (repair exchange server) 

I look forward to meeting with you at the 9 November meeting and answering any 

questions/concerns you may have on the preceding information. In the meantime, if you 

have any questions you can contact me via email or my cell @ 937.212.1379 

 

 

Jeff Terry | Information Technology 

Beavercreek Township 

937.306.5049 

 

 

35 of 67

35 of 67



36 of 67

36 of 67



37 of 67

37 of 67



38 of 67

38 of 67



39 of 67

39 of 67



40 of 67

40 of 67



41 of 67

41 of 67



To: Alex Zaharieff, Township Administrator 

From: David VandenBos 

Date: 2015-11-05 

Re: Agenda Items for 09 November 2015 Trustees’ Meeting 

 Please find documentation for the following Fire Department agenda items for Monday’s 

meeting: 

1) Purchase Request for Fire Gear Repair 

2) Purchase Request for Replacement Rechargeable Flashlights 

3) Request for Signed Agreement with Scott Safety Technologies 

4) Request to Adopt New Policy:  Emergency Scene and Training Rehabilitation 

5) Request Permission to Surplus Obsolete Medic and Rescue 

6) Bi-weekly department activity report 

1) Purchase Request for Fire Gear Repair 

1.1) This request is for the purchase of repairs and subsequent verification testing of 54 firefighting 

coats and 51 firefighting pants for a total cost of $13,481.50. 

1.2) This is an Immediate Need. 

1.3) This request is to repair the fire gear to meet NFPA 1971 (2013 edition) Standard on Protective 

Ensembles for Structural Fire Fighting and Proximity Fire Fighting and NFPA 1851 (2014 edition) 

Standard on Selection, Care, and Maintenance of Protective Ensembles for Structural Fire 

Fighting and Proximity Fire Fighting. 

1.4) Cost Center/Program Area: Fire Gear (5712), Object Code: Repairs and Maintenance (323), 

Budget Goal #1.  This purchase cost exceeds the original budget estimate of $10,500 due to low 

estimation of testing and repair costs at these new, higher standards. 

1.5) In 2014, an update was implemented to NFPA 1851, the standard on selection, care and 

maintenance of protective ensembles for structural firefighting, that required specific testing 

by a certified agency.  This standard required the fire department to seek outside testing and 

inspection of fire gear in addition to visual inspections performed by fire department staff.  

After the testing was completed, the identified repairs were quoted by the testing agency that 

is certified to perform the testing (testing agency certificate on file) and repairs. 

Each line firefighter and lieutenant are issued two sets of gear, as previously approved by the 

Board.  Currently only one set of gear has been tested and awaiting repairs.  Gear was selected 

to be tested based on age requirements outlined in the standard.  Not all gear is recommended 

to be tested every year, however, employees perform visual inspections and cleaning every six 

months and gear is also repaired based on those inspections. 

The department currently has 125 firefighting coats and 125 firefighting pants in service and an 

additional 25 Pieces of surplus fire gear.  Seven pieces sent for testing passed without need for 

any repairs.  None of the requested repairs exceeded the estimated value of the garment. 

1.6) Quotations: 

42 of 67

42 of 67



1.6.1. See Attached Quote [Attachment #01.6.1] 

1.6.2. There are only two local vendors certified to do the required testing and repair.  The 

selected vendor was chosen because the other vendor could not handle the volume of 

testing required by Beavercreek Fire Department, nor had the capacity to make the repairs 

in a timely manner. 

1.6.3. n/a 

1.7) Specifications: 

1.7.1. n/a 

1.7.2. n/a 

1.8) Other Cost Considerations 

1.8.1. Per the applicable NFPA Standards referenced by OAC 4123:1-21-02(J)(12) for purchase 

of fire gear, firefighting clothing has a life span of no more than 10 years from the 

manufacture date. 

1.8.2. n/a 

1.8.3. This request is part of the Total Cost of Ownership (recurring costs) of the individual 

garments themselves. 

1.9) n/a 

1.10) I make a motion to approve the following: 

Purchase Request 07537 to Apex Fire Services for Required Fire Gear Repairs 

in the amount of $13,481.50 

and to authorize the Township Administrator to sign for the Board. 

2) Purchase Request for Replacement Rechargeable Flashlights 

2.1) This request is for the purchase of 64 LED rechargeable flashlights and chargers, replacing non-

functioning equipment, to be issued to all fire department safety personnel, for a total cost of 

$11,683.50. 

2.2) This is an Immediate Need. 

2.3) ISO requires a minimum of 2 flashlights on each fire engine and 4 flashlights on each ladder 

truck.  There is no individual carry requirement. 

2.4) Cost Center/Program Area: Fire Operations (5710), Object Code: Capital Equipment (740), 

Budget Goal #1. 

2.5) Flashlights are a crucial tool for and directly impact the safety of firefighters.  Currently there 

are not enough flashlights available to perform basic tasks.  Battery life on the existing in 

service lights is minimal, causing the light to die before a single work cycle is completed for an 

employee.  The current flashlights have reached the end of their usable life.  One third of the 

lights in current inventory are out of service with mechanical failures 

The current flashlight technology employs incandescent bulbs with rechargeable batteries.  The 

flashlights sought for this purchase employ LED bulb technology and newer rechargeable 

technology.  Additionally, the new flashlights offer an insert that can utilize standard AA 

alkaline batteries if needed.  This newer lighting and power technology utilized in the requested 

lights is more efficient resulting in brighter light with longer duration for use on each charge.  

Additionally, the charge cycle on the new technology is far less than the currently technology, 

requiring only 1 hour to fully charge a flashlight as opposed to a 6-8 hour charge cycle for the 

43 of 67

43 of 67



current lights. 

This proposal seeks to redistribute our equipment and issue a flashlight to each firefighter and 

officer as part of their personal protective equipment.  This change will allow each employee to 

have access to a flashlight and includes work periods where personnel are recalled for large 

emergencies or inclement weather.  Existing working flashlights will be distributed to front line 

apparatus to allow for a flashlight to be utilized while a personal light is charging in a vehicle.  

Existing broken flashlights will be surplused as non-functional units after all usable parts have 

been salvaged. 

2.6) Quotations: 

2.6.1. Quotes: 

2.6.1.1. Finley Fire Equipment:   $11,683.50 [Attachment #02.6.1] 

2.6.1.2. The Fire Store $13,228.43 

2.6.1.3. Chief Supply $16,267.93 

2.6.2. n/a 

2.6.3. n/a 

2.7) Specifications: 

2.7.1. [Attachment #02.7.1] 

2.7.2. [Attachment #02.7.2] 

2.8) Other Cost Considerations: 

2.8.1. Each flashlight has an estimated lifespan of 5-8 years. 

2.8.2. n/a 

2.8.3. The rechargeable battery version of this flashlight has no additional recurring costs.  

Total Cost of Ownership was considered when evaluating a rechargeable battery product, 

compared to a disposable battery product.  The rechargeable solution was 10% of the total 

lifetime cost of a traditional battery solution. 

2.9) Existing broken lights will be salvaged for usable parts to extend the life of the remaining lights 

and then surplused as non-functioning equipment. 

2.10) I make a motion to approve the following: 

Purchase Request 08021 to Finley Fire Equipment for Rechargeable Flashlights, Chargers and 

Spare Batteries 

in the amount of $11,683.50 

and to authorize the Township Administrator to sign for the Board. 

3) Request for Signed Agreement with Scott Safety Technologies (Prepared by BC Hiester) 

3.1) This request is to allow the Township Administrator to enter into an agreement with Scott 

Safety to re-establish an In House Repair Center (IRC) at Beavercreek Township Fire 

Department for the maintenance, testing, and repair of our Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 

(SCBA). 

44 of 67

44 of 67



3.2) This is an Immediate Need. 

3.3) This request will execute a contract that will allow BTFD to continue maintenance of our SCBA 

in accordance with OAC 4123:1-21-02(P)(11), Township Resolution 2015-220 (BTFD SOG 

5717.001-3.1.2(b), and NFPA 1852, 2013 edition. 

3.4) n/a 

3.5) This agreement will re-establish BTFD as a certified IRC.  The previous IRC agreement lapsed 

during a personnel turn-over in the SCBA maintenance program.  We currently have Scott 

Certified Technicians, but they are unauthorized to complete maintenance, testing, or repairs 

until this agreement is approved.  Manufacturer certified maintenance, testing, and repairs is 

required to be compliant with the OAC 4123:1-21-02(P)(11). 

BTFD currently has three personnel certified by Scott as factory trained technicians and 

equipment previously invested in by the township valued at $15,000.  The ability to continue to 

maintain the SCBA in house saves the township a minimum of $3500.00 annually in testing fees 

alone.  The township has already invested in the certification classes and testing equipment.  

The testing of all BTFD SCBA is completed in approximately 15 hours by on-duty personnel and 

does not require any overtime.  These same personnel are able to complete necessary repairs, 

which would otherwise cost a repair rate of $88.00 per hour by a contractor, plus the cost and 

logistics of transporting the SCBA to the repair facility and back. 

3.6) Quotations: 

3.6.1. n/a 

3.6.2. Scott Safety is the manufacturer of the SCBA currently owned by Beavercreek Township 

and the only agency that can authorize a repair center. 

3.6.3. n/a 

3.7) Specifications: 

3.7.1. This is a request for the execution of a contract. [Attachment #03.7.1] 

3.7.2. This agreement was submitted to Township Legal Counsel to review.  All recommended 

changes have been made, with exception of the following: 

3.7.2.1. Section 7.7 (p.6) is an indemnification clause.  It needs to start with, "To the 

extent allowed by law, ***" 

3.7.2.2. Scott provided the following reasons for not changing that section.    First, this is 

the same agreement that is signed by both private third party companies and 

governmental agencies, with the majority being private companies (not 

governmental agencies).  Second, this agreement is also an agreement used by 

companies outside of Ohio.  This agreement is the same used by all companies in all 

states, so the agreement must be able to reflect that fact.   

Beavercreek Township is not the only department in the area that uses this 

agreement.  Some other departments in the area that are also service centers that 

have signed this agreement are:  Kettering Fire Department, Huber Heights Fire 

Department, Miami Township Fire Department, and Springfield Fire Department 

45 of 67

45 of 67



All of these departments are currently using and have signed the agreement that is in 

the proposal submitted to you.  I request that this agreement be signed by the 

trustees so that we can maintain our status as a Scott Certified In-House Repair 

Center and complete the repairs and annual testing that are waiting for completion 

of this agreement 

3.8) Other Cost Considerations: 

3.8.1. n/a 

3.8.2. A vendor could provide this service for an estimated $3500 minimum annually.  This 

price is for 15 hours of labor for testing only.  Repairs could be completed by a vendor for 

an additional $88.00 per hour, plus the cost of parts.  This estimate does not include 

shipping or transportation costs to from the vendor in Miamisburg. 

3.8.3. n/a 

3.9) n/a 

3.10) I make a motion to approve the Scott Safety In-House Repair Center Agreement   

and to authorize the Township Administrator to sign for the Board. 

4) Request to Adopt New Policy:  Emergency Scene and Training Rehabilitation 

4.1) [Attachment #04.00] 

The fire department is requesting approval of the attached Emergency Scene and Training 

Rehabilitation Policy.  Negotiation and implementation of this policy is required by the 

Firefighter’s Collective Bargaining Agreement, Article 33 

 

I make a motion to approve the fire department’s Emergency Scene and Training Rehabilitation 

Policy  

and to authorize the Township Administrator to sign for the Board. 

5) Request Permission to Surplus Obsolete Medic and Rescue: 

5.1) [Attachment #05.00] 

The fire department is requesting permission to declare the recently replaced 2005 Road 

Rescue Ambulance (1HTMNAAM95H144152) as surplus and donate that unit to the City of 

Beavercreek for use by the police department.   

The fire department is also requesting permission to declare the 2000 Freightliner Rescue 

(1FV6JLCBXYHG27542) as surplus and dispose of it by attempting to sell it on govdeals. 

46 of 67

46 of 67



6) Bi-weekly department activity report  

 Provided is a summary of fire department business, challenges, accomplishments, needs and 

concerns for the previous four weeks: 

6.1) Fire Chief Job Shadow:  Firefighter David Hudson spent a day working with the fire chief to 

learn more about the administrative operation of the fire department. 

6.2) Labor-Management:  Fire administration met with the Union to discuss issues resulting from 

the recently dropped grievance over firefighter discipline. 

6.3) Program Budget Meetings:  Fire administration met with each shift to discuss major changes 

and issues related to the 2016 FY budget proposals. 

6.4) Purchasing Authorization Modifications:  The “13 Points of Light” document was updated with 

two additional issues resulting from recent Board meetings.  The additional items are a 

description of need vs. want and inclusion of outside requirements (e.g. OAC, BWC, contract 

etc…) 

6.5) Blue Card Incident Management Training:  All fire department officers completed their 50 

hours of online training for Blue Card and are now participating in 24 hours of class room 

practical exercises for certification in the Blue Card system. 

6.6) Physical Fitness Testing:  Testing for qualification for the Union’s fitness incentive was 

completed. 

6.7) Auxiliary Meeting:  The Auxiliary held their monthly meeting to discuss issues of interest and 

concern.  They conducted a self-critique of their response to the Old Troon fire and are 

modifying their response protocol to include CERT members for large-scale events. 

6.8) Incident Critique:  The fire department performed a post-incident critique of the Old Troon fire.  

All crews performed well, and there were no substantive changes requested or required. 

6.9) Public Outreach:  Over the past two weeks, the crews have participated in the following 

activities: 

Station 63: Beavercreek Preschool, public education (x2) 

Station 63: Heartland of Beavercreek, Trunk or Treat event 

Station 62: Senior Center Health Fair 

Station 61: Trebein Elementary, Trunk or Treat event 

Station 61: Beavercreek High School, medic standby (x2) 

Station 62: WSU Rob’s Rescue Preparedness Fair, bariatric unit static display 

Station 61: Homeschool Group, station tour 

Station 64: Faith Baptist Church, Trunk or Treat event 

Station 61: Victory Park 5k, medic standby 

47 of 67

47 of 67



 

6.10) Activity Summary (previous 2 weeks) 

 

 

Call for Service Type

3: Medical l q 150 69% 3,856  3,441  +10%

7: False Alarm l p 18 7% 439     371     +1%

3: Crash  p 13 7% 348     300     +5%

6: Good Intent l p 8 6% 298     259     +11%

5: Service l p 6 5% 220     159     -8%

4: Hazard l p 4 3% 139     114     +2%

1: Fire l p 3 3% 113     79        -15%

2: Explosion l w 0 0% 10        6          -25%

8: Severe Weather l w 0 0% 7          5          +12%

9: Special l p 0 0% 11        8          -21%

Total q 202 5,441 4,742 +8%

Biweekly History |  Trend | Current 10-Year over Year History             YTD | Projected

Biweekly Incident Activity Report

#REF!

74.3%

8.9%

6.4%

4.0%

3.0%

2.0%

1.5%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0 100 200 300

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

C I T YC I T Y

B A T HB A T H

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

X E N I AX E N I A

C I T YC I T Y

X E N I AX E N I A

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

M I A M IM I A M I

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

F A I R B O R NF A I R B O R N

C I T YC I T Y

S P R I N GS P R I N G

VA L L E YVA L L E Y

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

S U G A R C R E E KS U G A R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

C I T YC I T Y

B E A V E R C R E E KB E A V E R C R E E K

T O W N S H I PT O W N S H I P

D A Y T O ND A Y T O N

K E T T E R I N GK E T T E R I N G

R I V E R S I D ER I V E R S I D E

C E N T E R V I L L EC E N T E R V I L L E

W A S H I N G T O NW A S H I N G T O N

T W PT W P

W P A F BW P A F B

.BIWEEKLY ACTIVITY
CALLS FOR SERVICE

EMS (145)

Crash (13)

Service (38)

Fire (3)

G Fire Stations

0 2 4 6 81
Miles

48 of 67

48 of 67



 

 

4,742 incidents this year is +3% from this time last year

#REF!

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

4,742 incidents YTD

J F M A M J J A S O N D

-15%

+15%
+3% from prior year

99%: 07 
95%: 09 

50%: 15 

5%: 22 
1%: 26 

W T F S S M T W T F S S M T
0

10

20

30

Aid Type YTD No Aid | Provided | Requested

Provided p 2 1,339 107 +38%

Requested q -10 -1,289 -199 +131%

Difference q -8 50 -92

Biweekly Mutual Aid Report

#REF!

Biweekly History |  Trend | Current 10-Year over Year History             YTD | Projected

94%
2%
4%

Training Type Biweekly History |  Trend | Current

Firefighting q 33 2,670     1,287  -35%

EMS p 19 3,247     2,111  -10%

Driver/Operator p 25 2,225     523     -71%

Rescue p 14 2,822     1,478  -39%

Officers q 56 1,338     798     -22%

Daily Dril ls p 12 1,706     614     -53%

Haz-Mat p 0 735        169     -69%

Fire Prevention p 1 209        121     -21%

Instructors w 0 160        153     +45%

NIMS q 76 1             704     ########

Dispatch w 0 103        33        -56%

Total q 235 15,214 7,989 -33%

Biweekly Training Activity Report

#REF!

10-Year over Year History             YTD | Projected

13.8%

8.0%

10.7%

5.8%

23.9%

5.1%

0.0%

0.4%

0.0%

32.4%

0.0%

100.0%

0 250 500 750 1,000

49 of 67

49 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #01.6.1 

50 of 67

50 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #02.6.1

51 of 67

51 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #02.7.1

52 of 67

52 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #02.7.2

53 of 67

53 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #03.7.1

54 of 67

54 of 67



 
55 of 67

55 of 67



 
56 of 67

56 of 67



 
57 of 67

57 of 67



 
58 of 67

58 of 67



 
59 of 67

59 of 67



 
60 of 67

60 of 67



 
61 of 67

61 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #04.0 

SECTION 1.0 PURPOSE AND SCOPE: 
SECTION 1.1PURPOSE: 
To ensure that the physical and mental condition of members operating at the scene of an emergency or 
a training exercise does not jeopardize the safety and integrity of the operation 
SECTION 1.2 SCOPE: 
This policy applies to the entire fire department, and will be implemented uniformly on all three shifts. 
Battalion chiefs, or their appointed fill-in, have the authority and responsibility to ensure that this policy 
is followed for each shift  
This procedure will apply to all operations and training exercises where physical activity or exposure to 
extreme weather conditions creates a health concern for emergency providers 
SECTION 1.3 ORGANIZATIONAL ORIGIN: 
Administration/ Operations 

SECTION 2.0 DEFINITIONS: 
Cooling Active- The process of using external methods or devices to reduce elevated core body 
temperatures. 
Cooling Passive- The process of using natural evaporative cooling to reduce elevated core body 
temperatures. 
Emergency Medical Care – Treatment of patients using fist aid, CPR, basic and advance life support and 
other medical protocols prior to arrival at a hospital. 
Hydration – The introduction of water in the form of food or fluids into the body. 
Medical Evaluation – Is the protocol based medical evaluation of a member for determining their ability 
to continue performing their duties, or the need for further medical attention. This evaluation includes 
but is not limited to vital signs, physical assessment and general impression.  
Medical Monitoring – The monitoring of members who are at risk of suffering from the adverse effects 
of stress, and from the exposure to heat, cold or hazardous environments. 
Patient – An emergency responder who is provided emergency medical care during the rehabilitation 
process.  
Rehabilitation – (Rehab) an intervention designed to mitigate against the physical, physiological, and 
emotional stress of fire fighting in order to sustain a member’s energy, improve performance, and 
decrease the likelihood of on-scene injury or death. 

SECTION 3.0 POLICY: 
All employees and supervisors shall maintain an awareness of the condition of themselves and the other 
members operating within their span of control, and ensure that adequate steps are taken to provide 
for each member's safety and health. The command structure will be utilized to request relief and the 
reassignment of fatigued crews. 
Members are responsible for maintaining proper hydration and nutrition while on duty.  During any 
emergency incident or training evolution all members shall advise their Supervisor when they believe 
that their level of fatigue or exposure to heat or cold is approaching a level that could affect themselves, 
their crew, or the operation in which they are involved. 
Members shall also remain aware of the health and safety of other members of their crew. Mutual aid 
fire and EMS personnel will follow the guidelines set forth in this policy, as a component of the incident 
management system. The Rehab Officer will monitor and consider rehabilitation for any Law 
Enforcement personnel; and other persons working with the department to control the emergency 
incident. 

SECTION 4.0 PROCEDURES: 
SECTION 4.1 INCIDENT COMMAND 

62 of 67

62 of 67



 

4.1.1 The Incident Commander shall consider the circumstances of each incident and make adequate 
provisions early in the incident for the physical rehabilitation of all emergency providers operating at the 
scene. 
4.1.2 These provisions should include:  
1) Relief from climatic conditions; 
2) Rest and recovery; 
3) Active and / or passive cooling or warming as needed for incident type and climate 
conditions; 
4) Rehydration; 
5) Calorie and electrolyte replacements; 
6)  Medical monitoring; 
7)  Emergency medical service treatment according to local protocol;  
8)  Member accountability; and  
9)  Release 
SECTION 4.2 ESTABLISHMENT OF REHABILITATION SECTOR 
4.2.1 The Incident Commander will establish a Rehabilitation Sector or Group when conditions indicate 
that rest and rehabilitation is needed for personnel operating at an incident scene or training evolution. 
4.2.2 The Incident Commander will place a member in charge of the Group and that member shall be 
known as the "Rehab" Officer. The "Rehab" Officer will typically report to Command in the framework of 
the Incident Management System. 
4.2.3 Command will request a mutual aid medic unit to establish Rehab when BTFD medic units are 
unavailable to establish or preform rehab assignments.  
SECTION 4.3 REHAB SITE LOCATION  
4.3.1 The Incident Commander will normally designate the location for the Rehabilitation Area. If a 
specific location has not been designated, the "Rehab" Officer shall select an appropriate location based 
on the site characteristics and site designations. 
4.3.2 Rehab should be in a location that will facilitate the rehabilitation process and allow the 
emergency provider to recuperate from the demands and hazards of the emergency operations or 
training evolution free from smoke, toxic fumes or exhaust fumes from apparatus, vehicles and 
equipment. 
4.3.3 Rehab should be far enough away from the scene that members may safely remove their turnout 
gear and SCBA, and be afforded mental rest from the stress and pressure of the emergency operation or 
training evolution. Rehab should allow prompt re-entry back into the emergency operation upon 
completion of rehabilitation. 
4.3.4 It should provide suitable protection from the prevailing environmental conditions. During hot 
weather, it should be in a cool, shaded area. During cold weather, it should be in a warm, dry area. 
4.3.5 The Rehabilitation Area will be a tobacco free area. 
4.3.6 It should be large enough to accommodate multiple crews, based on the size of the incident. 
4.3.7 If possible, the site should have access to an outside fresh water supply, which can be used for 
cleaning, cooling and drinking water. 
4.3.8 It should be easily accessible by EMS units. 
4.3.9 With the above characteristics in mind, potential Rehabilitation Area locations include: 
4.3.9.1 A nearby garage, building lobby or other structure; a school bus, municipal bus, or trailer; Fire 
apparatus, medic, auxiliary unit or other emergency vehicles at the scene or called to the scene. Mutual 
aid vehicles designated for the purpose of rehabilitation. 
SECTION 4.4 RESOURCES 
4.4.1 The "Rehab" Officer shall secure all necessary resources required to adequately staff and supply 
the Rehabilitation Area. The Beavercreek Township Fire Department does have an Auxiliary Team that it 
is equipped to provide rehabilitation to firefighters on emergency scenes. It is the intention for the 

63 of 67

63 of 67



 

Beavercreek Township Fire Department to utilize the Auxiliary Team primarily for these rehabilitation 
efforts. 
4.4.2 Suggested supplies should include the following: 
1)  Fluids: water, activity beverage, oral electrolyte solutions and ice; 
2) Water Coolers; 
3) Food: hot and cold items; 
4) Trash Receptacles; and 
5) Miscellaneous-awning, fans, tarps, smoke ejectors, heaters, dry clothing, extra equipment, 
floodlights, blankets and towels, traffic cones and fire-line tape (to identify the entrance and exit of the 
Rehabilitation Area 
SECTION 4.5 PRE AND POST INCIDENT REHABILITATION 
4.5.1 During periods of extreme weather, members are responsible to maintain proper hydration and 
nutrition throughout the workday, both pre and post incident. 
4.5.2 During any emergency incident or training evolution all members shall advise their Supervisor 
when they believe that their level of fatigue or exposure to heat or cold is approaching a level that could 
affect themselves, their crew, or the operation in which they are involved. 
4.5.3 Certain drugs impair the body's ability to sweat. Extreme caution must be exercised if the member 
has taken antihistamines, such as Actifed or Benadryl, or has taken diuretics or stimulants. 
4.5.4 Hydration 
4.5.4.1 A critical factor in the prevention of heat injury is the maintenance of water and electrolytes. 
Water must be replaced during training and emergency incidents.  
4.5.4.2 To maintain hydration status, the emergency provider should consume at least one (1) quart of 
water per hour. Rehydration may be accomplished with water or a 50/50 mixture of water and a 
commercially prepared activity beverage.  
4.5.4.3 Rehydration is important even during cold weather operations where, despite the outside 
temperature, heat stress may occur during fire fighting or other strenuous activity when protective 
equipment is worn. 
4.5.4.4 Alcohol, carbonated beverages and caffeinated beverages should be avoided before and during 
heat stress because both interfere with the body's water conservation mechanisms. 
4.5.5 Nourishment 
4.5.5.1 The department shall provide food at the scene of an extended incident when units are engaged 
for three or more hours.  
4.5.5.2 During the working phase of the incident a cup of soup, broth, or stew is highly recommended 
because it is digested much faster than sandwiches and fast-food products. In addition, foods such as 
apples, oranges and bananas provide supplemental forms of energy replacement.  
4.5.5.3 At very prolonged incidents, 12 to 18 hours or more, a balanced diet will be necessary. However, 
if strenuous work is ongoing or imminent, the diet should be consumed in small amounts at a time. 
SECTION 4.6 ON SITE REHABILITATION 
4.6.1 Reporting to Rehab 
4.6.1.1 The "One Air Bottle Rule," or 45 minutes of work time, is recommended as an acceptable level of 
activity prior to rehabilitation.  The initial rehab period should be a minimum of 20 minutes. 
4.6.1.2 Members in the Rehabilitation Area shall make an immediate effort to rehydrate. 
4.6.1.3 Members will check into and out of Rehab in accordance to the guideline on Form 5720.005.A. 
4.6.1.3 Members should not be moved from a hot environment directly into an air conditioned area 
because the body's cooling system can shut down in response to the external cooling. An air-
conditioned environment is acceptable after cool-down period at ambient temperature with sufficient 
air movement. 
SECTION 4.7 MEDICAL MONITORING 

64 of 67

64 of 67



 

4.7.1 Medical monitoring will be preformed by EMS personnel on members entering Rehab. Vital signs 
may be taken as part of the general assessment based on the member’s general impression and any 
complaints made by the rehabbing member. 
4.7.2 Continued rehabilitation should consist of additional monitoring of providing rest, and providing 
fluids for rehydration. 
4.7.2 To ensure that fatigued members are not required to return to duty before they are rested, 
personnel will not be released from Rehab until EMS personnel have completed an assessment of the 
member.   
4.7.3 Personnel exiting Rehab may be assigned to alternate duties, such as apparatus operator or EMS 
Rahab, assignments at the discretion of Command based on recommendations of the Rehab Officer. 
SECTION 4.8 MEDICAL EVALUATIONS 
4.8.1 Emergency Medical Service (EMS) should be provided and staffed by qualified EMS personnel on 
the scene (at a minimum of BLS level).  
4.8.2 EMS Personnel will evaluate vital signs, examine members, and make proper disposition (return to 
duty, continued rehabilitation, or medical treatment and transport to medical facility). 
4.8.3 Members entering Rehab with a poor general impression, or complaining of any medical condition 
will receive a complete medical evaluation while in Rehab.  The conditions listed below should trigger 
the complete medical evaluation. 
1) Personnel complaining of chest pain, shortness of breath, dizziness, weakness, nausea, or 
headache; 
2) General complaints such as cramps, aches and pains; 
3) Symptoms of heat- or cold-related stress; 
4) Changes in speech, gait or behavior; 
5) Alertness, orientation to person, place and time; and 
6) Vital signs considered abnormal by local protocol. 
4.8.4 Personnel needing emergency medical care based off of their medical evaluation will be      
classified as a patient and will receive care appropriate for their injury or illness. 
4.8.5 Patients will be treated and transported as appropriate according to local EMS protocol.  
4.8.6 BTFD personnel will follow the return to work process for on duty injuries and illness as       
outlined in the Township Handbook and / or Collective Bargaining Agreements as related to their 
employment classification. 
SECTION 4.9 DOCUMENTATION 
4.9.1 All medical evaluations shall be recorded on the Form 5720.005 Rehabilitation Tracking. This form 
must be signed, dated and timed by the "Rehab" Officer or his/her designee.  
4.9.3 Any member-receiving Medical Treatment shall have an EMS Run Sheet and Fire Casualty Report 
completed. 
SECTION 4.11 ACCOUNTABILITY: 
4.10.1 Crew integrity will be maintained while personnel are assigned to Rehab.  Any change in crew 
configuration, status or assignment will be reported to the accountability officer or command. 
4.10.2 Whenever possible, personnel from the same unit will be used to make crew configuration 
changes; such as a member of the attack engine crew being replaced by the attack engine pump 
operator. 
SECTION 4.12 DEMOBILIZING THE REHABILITATION OPERATION 
4.12.1 Rehab will be discontinued at the discretion of command. When demobilizing command 
personnel will: 
1) Evaluate and release all department members; 
2) Return all equipment and/or supplies to the equipment or stations; 
3) Clean up and appropriately dispose of all trash; 
4) Attempt to return area to pre-emergency state; 
5) Thank any civilians or auxiliary members who assisted in the operation; and    

65 of 67

65 of 67



 

6) Command shall attach the Rehabilitation Tracking form (Form 5720.005) to their incident 
worksheet and/or report. 

SECTION 5.0 FORMS: 
Form 5400.005.A.E  FireHouse Incident Report  
Form 5720.005 A.E Rehabilitation Tracking  

SECTION 6.0 REFERENCES 
NFPA 1584 Rehabilitation Process for Members During Emergency Operations & Training Exercises 
(2008) 
Beavercreek Township and IAFF Local 2857 Collective Bargaining Agreement 2014-2017

66 of 67

66 of 67



 

ATTACHMENT #05.00 

 

67 of 67

67 of 67


	11-9-15 regular trustee's meeting
	draft communications plan 11-03-15
	2016 Holiday Schedule
	2016 Meeting Dates
	VSP
	HX Society
	GCSO
	Finance Department
	zoning bi-weekly report 11-09-15
	IT
	Road
	FD Agenda Items 20151109



